










 

Maryland Department of Transportation 
Office of Procurement 

CATS+ TORFP J01B5400010 
MDTA – OPENTEXT LIVELINK Enterprise Content Management System and 

Support Services 

Addendum #2 
December 23, 2014 

 
This Addendum is being issued to provide answers to questions submitted by Master 
Contractors for the above named TORFP.  All information contained herein is binding on all 
offerors who respond to this TORFP. 
 
Question 1: Per Section 2.11.1 OFFEROR’S COMPANY MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS bullet 2: ' “The 

Master Contractor must have at least five (5) years of experience providing support and 
program management of developing and maintaining new and existing solutions for the 
OPENText application (Subcontractor experience shall not be used to demonstrate satisfying 
this minimum qualification)”.  Would MDTA allow Master Contractor to have less than 5 
years of this qualification (for instance, 2 years), and substitute the remaining years by 
extensive (more than 10 years) experience of qualified subcontractor? 

 
Answer 1: The Master Contractor must have at least five (5) years of experience. Subcontractor experience 

shall not be used to satisfy or be combined to satisfy this minimum qualification. 
 
Question 2: Does MDOT expect a software solution for the collaboration tool to be presented? 
 
Answer 2: Yes, the contractor should provide an industry standard on-line tool for project and task tracking 

for both the Contractor and MDTA to collaborate on project and operational activities. 
 
Question 3: Does MDOT expect a quotation for the collaboration tool SW and solution? 
 
Answer 3: No, there is no expected software quotation and should be a contained in the services quote. 
 
Question 4: What are the required encryption standards? 
 
Answer 4: FISMA will be the standard for all security based projects going forward 
 
Question 5: Are the Local, State, Federal operational guidelines or standards required relative to 

encryption? 
 
Answer 5: No, just the knowledge of how to implement the technology. 
 
Question 6: Please clarify the MBE requirement relative to the State goal of 29%? 
 
Answer 6: The overall state target for MBE activity during a fiscal year is 29%, for this TORFP the goal is 

25%. 
 
Question 7: Does the incumbent have a contractual requirement to support a transition to the 

incoming contractor? 
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Answer 7: Yes, the incumbent is required to support the transition which will be a collaboration effort 
between all three parties to enable knowledge transfer. 

 
Question 8: What is the expected Transition time period, for example 30, 60, 90 days? 
 
Answer 8: Within 90 days, or as soon as possible, as this TORFP may overlap the current contract 

expiration. 
 
Question 9: Per Section 2.3.1, of the 225 OpenText Licenses how many are actively being used on a 

daily basis? 
 
Answer 9: The number of licenses that are actively being used daily varies based on access needs.  To date 

there is no information available at this time to provide an average number. 
 
Question 10: Per Section 2.3.1 (a, b, c), How many document items are stored in the OpenText based 

systems of ECS, SHARP and Document Imaging (Finance)? 
 
Answer 10: At this time MDTA’s best estimate 10K and this number is expected to increase. 
 
Question 11: Per Section 2.3.1 (a, b, c), How large are the Production databases supporting the 

OpenText based systems of ECS, SHARP and Document Imaging (Finance)? 
 
Answer 11: Reference Section 2.4 
 
Question 12: Of the MDTA Future Technologies listed in Section 2.5.1, which is generally believed to be 

the highest priority? 
 
Answer 12: The MDTA Future Technologies listed in section 2.5 is a listing which has not been prioritized. 
 
Question 13: Per Section 2.8.2, how many users does MDOT anticipate using the Team Collaboration 

Tool? 
 
Answer 13: The number of users would be based on the team(s), the workload, the number of open projects 

and the number of maintenance issues which cannot be determined at this time. 
 
Question 14: Per Section 2.8.4 A, What is the expected MDOT remote access technology for day-to-day 

operations support? Example Citrix XenApp, VPN client, etc. 
 
Answer 14: MDTA uses a combination of VPN and Citrix for remote access for day-to-day operations 

support. 
 
Question 15: Per Section 2.8.6, what security requirements exist for transfer and storage of data to the 

TO Contractor “off-site location? 
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Answer 15: Security requirements and retention schedules to offsite locations will be continuously 
developed in collaboration with MDTA as referenced in section 2.8.6) 

 
Question 16: Per Section 2.8.6, what is the average size (disk space) of daily backups? 
 
Answer 16: The file store average cannot be determined at this time as the input varies daily. See diagram in 

Section 2.4 
 
Question 17: Per Section 2.8.6, How should a TO Contractor provide pricing for off-site storage of daily 

backups? 
 
Answer 17: The backups are not being handled by the TO Contractor. 
 
Question 18: Per Section 3.4.1 A 5, what information is required to identify “Key Personnel”? The 

question is driven per the requirement to NOT provide resumes as stated in Section 2.1 
 
Answer 18: Please refer to Section 1.2, TO Contract Manager, for details on the role of the TO Contract 

Manager. 
 
Question 19: Per Attachment 1, does the MDOT expect TO Contractors to adjust the “Total Class 

Hours Annually” to propose multiple resources for the same role? Can a TO Contractors 
add line items for multiple resources of the same role? 

 
Answer 19: No, the TO Contractor is not to adjust the “Total Class Hours Annually”.  The TO Contractor is 

not to alter the Attachment 1. 
 
Question 20: Per Attachment 1 Can TO Contractors adjust the “Total Class Hours Annually” to 

propose resources for less than 100% of annual support? Example: A 50% resource at 
1040 hours for 1 year. 

 
Answer 20: No, the TO Contractor is not to adjust the “Total Class Hours Annually”. 
 
Question 21: Per Attachment 1, Does the Authority have any statistics on the actual effort by role that 

has been required to provide solution support over the last few years – possibly the 
average annual hours by role (this will help us to provide as accurate pricing as possible in 
our response)? 

 
Answer 21: No 
 
Question 22: Are there any ‘lessons learned’ from the previous contract in terms of things that should 

be done differently related to how support is provided? 
 
Answer 22: No 
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Question 23: Related to the previous question, has the Authority been satisfied with the support 
provided by the incumbent Open Text support vendor? 

 
Answer 23: This question is not related to this solicitation.  The services provided under the current task 

order must be re-competed using the CATS+ master contract as the existing CATS II TORFP 
expires on May 31, 2015. 

 
Question 24: In Section 2.8 for the TO Contractor Requirements the TO Contractor is expected to have 

a TEST Environment at its site.  Is this in addition to the Livelink TEST Environment 
housed at the MDTA Data Center? 

 
Answer 24: Yes, Contractor is required to have a TEST and DEVELOPMENT environment on its site. 
 
Question 25: In Section 2.8.4 MDTA provides information on the average number of calls per month 

for the system.  For these calls and issues, approximately how many per month (or per 
year) are a Severity Level 4 Issue(s)?  Approximately how many per month (or per year) 
are a Severity Level 5 Issue(s)? 

 
Answer 25: This information is not available at this time 
 
Question 26: In Section 2.8.5 there are requirements for a Service Level Agreement.  Is the table in 

Section 2.8.5 presented as an example? 
 
Answer 26; Yes this is an example 
 
Question 27: In Section 2.8.6 there are requirements for Backup/Disaster Recovery.  Are the 

requirements identified for the retention schedule for the Production Environment Only? 
 
Answer 27: No 
 
Question 28: In Section 2.8.6 there are requirements for Backup/Disaster Recovery.  Are the 

requirements identified for the off-site storage for the Production Environment Only?  
Will MDTA allow TO Contractor Representatives on-site at the MDTA Data Center to 
collect daily backup media or is it envisioned that the backup data will be transmitted to 
the off-site storage electronically? 

 
Answer 28: No to each question 
 
 
 
 

End of Addendum #2 
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